
 

 

 

Americans with Disabilities Act – Reasonable Accommodations Provided Upon Request (360-886-5700) 

 

   

 

 CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND 
            July 19, 2018 Regular Business Meeting Agenda  

 25510 Lawson St., Black Diamond, Washington 
 
 

 

7:00 P.M. – CALL TO ORDER, FLAG SALUTE, ROLL CALL 

AGENDA REVIEW AND APPROVAL: 

APPOINTMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS, PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS:  

CONSENT AGENDA: 

1) Claim Checks – July 5, 2018 – Check No. 46349 through 46389 (voids 45919, 46002, 46122, 46310) and EFTs in the 
amount of $89,591.98 

2) Claim Checks – July 19, 2018 – Check No. 46390 through 46433 and EFTs in the amount of $234,913.03 

3) Payroll – June 20, 2018 – Check No. 19574 through 19594 and ACHs in the amount of $345,488.32 

4) Minutes – Council Special Meeting of June 25, 2018 

5) AB18-065 – Resolution No. 18-1254 Adopting Amendment to Interlocal Agreement with SCORE for Inmate  
  Housing          Chief Kiblinger 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  Persons wishing to address the City Council regarding items of new business are encouraged to do so at this time.  

When recognized by the Mayor, please come to the podium and clearly state your name.  Please limit your comments to 3 minutes.  If you desire a 
formal agenda placement, please contact the City Clerk at 360-886-5700.  Thank you for attending. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS:  None 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  None 

NEW BUSINESS: 

6) AB18-066 – Resolution No. 18-1255 Regarding Final Plat Approval for Ten Trails (F/K/A “The Villages”) PP1A 
Division 2 Subdivision         Mr. Williamson 

 
7) AB18-067 – Resolution No. 18-1256 Regarding Greenhouse Gas Emission Reduction Policies  Mr. Boettcher 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS:   

MAYOR’S REPORT: 

COUNCIL REPORTS: 

• Councilmember Deady 

• Councilmember Oglesbee 

• Councilmember Edelman 



 

 

 

Americans with Disabilities Act – Reasonable Accommodations Provided Upon Request (360-886-5700) 

• Councilmember Stout 

• Councilmember Wisnoski 

 

ATTORNEY REPORT:  

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

EXECUTIVE SESSION:   

ADJOURNMENT: 

 

CLOSED SESSION: To discuss collective bargaining pursuant to RCW 42.30.140(4) 

 















































































































 

Black Diamond City Council Special Meeting Minutes – June 25, 2018 
 Page 1 of 3 

 

 

 

 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER, FLAG SALUTE: 
 
Mayor Benson called the regular meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. and led us all in the Flag 
Salute. 
 

ROLL CALL: 
 
PRESENT:  Councilmembers Deady, Oglesbee, Edelman, and Wisnoski. 
 
ABSENT:  Councilmember Stout (excused). 
 
Staff present:  Andrew Williamson, MDRT/Economic Development Director; May Miller, 
Finance Director; Fire Chief Barlow; Alexandria Kenyon, City Attorney, and Brenda L. 
Martinez, City Clerk. 
 

AGENDA REVIEW AND APPROVAL: 
 
Councilmember Edelman moved to adopt the agenda; second Councilmember Deady.  
Motion passed 4-0. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA: 

Councilmember Wisnoski moved to adopt the Consent Agenda; second Councilmember 
Edelman.  Motion passed with all voting in favor (4-0).  The Consent Agenda was approved 
as follows: 
 
1) Claim Checks – June 21, 2018 – Check No. 46299 through 46348 and EFTs in the 

amount of $220,095.00 
2) Payroll – May 30, 2018 – Check No. 19556 through 19573 and ACHs in the amount of 

$330,423.47 
3) Minutes – Council Meeting of June 7, 2018 

4) AB18-063 – Resolution No. 18-1252 Accepting Easements from James Thompson for 
Utilities and Pedestrian Facilities on King County Parcel Number 112106-9045 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Jenna Kaluza, OakPointe spoke to Council. 

 
NEW BUSINESS: 

 BLACK DIAMOND CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
Special Meeting of July 25, 2018 

Council Chamber, 25510 Lawson Street, Black Diamond, Washington 



 

Black Diamond City Council Special Meeting Minutes – June 25, 2018 
 Page 2 of 3 

5) AB18-061 – Resolution No. 18-1253 Adopting the Planning Calendar for the 2019 
Budget Process 

 
Finance Director Miller reported on this item. 
 
Councilmember Deady moved to approve Resolution No. 18-1253, adopting the 2019 
Budget planning process and calendar; second Councilmember Oglesbee.  Motion passed 
with all voting in favor (4-0). 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS:   

Fire Department – Chief Barlow reported on the career side of the department as he spoke 
about the volunteer side at the last meeting.  He shared that a firefighter turned in his 
resignation after serving the department for 21 years so there will be some movement 
within the department to fill the position.  He stressed that the undergrowth is already 
very dry this year and urged caution as they have already received calls for undergrowth 
fires that have started. 
 
MDRT – Director Williamson distributed to Council Ten Trails Phase 1A Division 2 Final Plat.  
He noted it is still in process and he is here tonight to give an update and would like 
Council to pass this on July 19th which would allow Councilmembers the time to review and 
ask questions.  He noted the action on the 19th would be to approve or deny.  He again 
invited Councilmembers to contact him with any questions or to schedule a tour. 
 

MAYOR’S REPORT: 

Mayor Benson reported attending Ken Blakley’s retirement party and noted that tonight’s 
meeting was due to the rescheduling of the June 21 meeting and reminded everyone that 
the July 5th regular business meeting of the City Council was cancelled. 
 

COUNCIL REPORTS: 

Councilmember Oglesbee reported attending the Black Diamond Labor Days meeting on 
the 13th, the Community Center Luau.  She noted Miners Day is July 7 in the historic 
downtown area and invited everyone to come and enjoy the festivities.  She also 
announced the next Labor Days meeting is July 27 at 6:30 p.m. at the Library. 
 
Councilmember Deady reported attending the Enumclaw High School graduation as a 
parent and a Councilmember, the Community Center Luau, Boots and Badges, and DARE 
Graduation.  She discussed that during a Public Safety Committee meeting the police 
department had concerns about people living or camping in city rights-of-way or public 
property.  She noted City Clerk Martinez is gathering information from other municipalities 
about what they have adopted and her and Councilmember Oglesbee are asking that a 
special meeting be held on July 19th before the regular meeting at 6:00 p.m. for Council to 
discuss this.  There was consensus to hold a special meeting on July 19th at 6:00 p.m. 
 



 

Black Diamond City Council Special Meeting Minutes – June 25, 2018 
 Page 3 of 3 

Councilmember Wisnoski reported being busy doing family activities and is hoping to 
attend the Hometown Social at Ten Trails on Friday. 
 
Councilmember Edelman reported attending the Boots and Badges basketball game, Public 
Works Committee meeting and vacationing in Alaska. 
 

ATTORNEY REPORT:  None 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

Andy Williamson, Black Diamond spoke to Council. 

Gary Davis, Black Diamond spoke to Council. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: None 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Councilmember Oglesbee moved to adjourn the meeting; second Councilmember Deady.  
Motion passed with all voting in favor (4-0). 
 
The meeting ended at 7:22 p.m. 
    ATTEST: 
 
          
Carol Benson, Mayor    Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Black Diamond 
Post Office Box 599 

Black Diamond, WA 98010 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:   
 
Resolution adopting amendment to 
Interlocal Agreement with South 
Correctional Entity (SCORE) for inmate 
housing 

Agenda Date:     July 19, 2019        AB18-065 

 Mayor Carol Benson  

City Administrator   

City Attorney David Linehan  

City Clerk – Brenda L. Martinez  

Com Dev/Nat Res – Barb Kincaid  

Finance – May Miller  

MDRT/Ec Dev – Andy Williamson  

Cost Impact (see also Fiscal Note):  $ Police – Chief Kiblinger X 

Fund Source: -- Public Works – Seth Boettcher  

Timeline:  Court – Stephanie Metcalf  

   

Agenda Placement:  Mayor   Two Councilmembers  Committee Chair  City Administrator 

Attachments: Resolution; Amendment 

 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 

Currently the City uses SCORE as one of the facilities to house inmates.  This is the yearly 
addendum for the bed rates which will be effective January 1, 2019. 
 
FISCAL NOTE (Finance Department):  The 2019 rates will be included in the 2019 Budget. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: MOTION to adopt Resolution No. 18-1254, authorizing the 
Mayor to execute the 2018 amendment to the Interlocal Agreement with South 
Correctional Entity (SCORE). 
 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

July 19, 2018   

         

 



 

RESOLUTION NO. 18-1254 

 

  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

AUTHORIZING 2018 ADDENDUM TO THE AGREEMENT 

FOR JAIL SERVICES WITH SOUTH CORRECTIONAL 

ENTITY (SCORE) 
 

 

WHEREAS, currently the City of Black Diamond contracts with South Correctional Entity 
(SCORE) as an option for jail services when booking offenders; and 
 

WHEREAS, this Addendum sets the beds rates for 2019 with the effective date being 
January 1, 2019; 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, 

WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.  The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the 2018 Amendment for Jail 
Services with South Correctional Entity (SCORE) substantially in the form attached 
hereto as Exhibit A. 
 
 

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, 

WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, THIS 19TH DAY OF JULY 2018. 

 
       CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND: 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Carol Benson, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk 





CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Black Diamond 
Post Office Box 599 

Black Diamond, WA 98010 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:   
 
Resolution authorizing the Mayor to 
execute the City’s written final plat 
approval for The Villages MPD, Ten Trails 
Phase 1A – Division 2 Final Plat 

Agenda Date:   July 19, 2018                    AB18-066 

 Mayor – Carol Benson  

City Administrator –   

City Attorney – David Linehan  

City Clerk – Brenda L. Martinez  

Com Dev/Nat Res –   

Finance – May Miller  

MDRT/Ec Dev – Andy Williamson X 

Cost Impact (see also Fiscal Note):  None Police – Chief Kiblinger  

Fund Source: n/a Public Works – Seth Boettcher  

Timeline:  Court – Stephanie Metcalf  

   

Agenda Placement:  Mayor   Two Councilmembers  Committee Chair  City Administrator 

Attachments: Proposed Resolution; Staff Report; Plat Map; Performance and Maintenance Bonds 
(exhibit within Staff Report). 

SUMMARY STATEMENT:  
 
The Villages (also referred to as “Ten Trails”) Phase 1A – Division 2 is a 117 -lot plat that was granted 
Preliminary Approval under City File Number PLN11-0001. The plat is located within The Villages Master 
Planned Development Phase 1A and is zoned Master Planned Development (MPD). The owners, 
Oakpointe / CCD Black Diamond LLC, have completed the preliminary plat requirements and now are 
requesting final plat approval. Staff has worked with the applicants to ensure preliminary requirements 
have been met. Staff’s written findings and recommendation for approval are documented in a Staff 
Report for City Council’s review. If the Council determines that the final plat conforms to all terms of the 
preliminary plat approval set forth by the Hearing Examiner and that adequate bonds have been posted, 
then by resolution, it shall accept staff’s written findings and authorize the Mayor to execute the final 
plat approval by entering the City’s written approval on the face of the plat. 
 

FISCAL NOTE (Finance Department):  N/A 
 

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion to adopt a Resolution No. 18-1255, approving the 
final plat for Ten Trails Phase 1A Division 2 (PLN18-0034); setting forth 
supportive findings and fixing a time when the final plat shall become effective. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

June 25, 2018  MDRT Department Report 

July 19, 2018        

  

 



Resolution No. 18-1255   1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 18-1255  
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BLACK 
DIAMOND, WASHINGTON, GRANTING FINAL PLAT 
APPROVAL FOR TEN TRAILS (F/K/A “THE 
VILLAGES”) PP1A DIVISION 2 SUBDIVISION 

 
 

WHEREAS, on September 20, 2010, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 10-
946 approving a Master Planned Development (“MPD”) permit for applicant CCD 
Black Diamond Partners LLC’s (“Oakpointe”), f/k/a Yarrow Bay, to develop of a 
master planned community known as “The Villages”; and 
 
WHEREAS, on December 12, 2011, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 11-
970 approving The Villages Development Agreement (“DA”) with Oakpointe setting 
forth extensively negotiated requirements and agreed conditions governing 
commercial and residential development activity within The Villages MPD; and 
 
WHEREAS, on December 10, 2012, the City’s Hearing Examiner conditionally 
granted Preliminary Plat Approval for the subdivision known as PP1A of The 
Villages MPD, and Oakpointe has since changed the name of The Villages MPD 
to “Ten Trails”; and 
  
WHEREAS, Oakpointe has applied for final plat approval (File No. PLN18-0034) 
for the Ten Trails PP1A Division 2 Subdivision (“PP1A Division 2”); and 
 
WHEREAS, under the DA, Oakpointe’s application for final plat approval of Ten 
Trails PP1A Division 2 is vested to the Black Diamond Municipal Code in effect as 
of the date of the DA, which is attached as Exhibit E to the DA (“Vested Code”); 
and  
 
WHEREAS, City staff and members of the Master Developer Review Team 
(“MDRT”) have reviewed the proposed final plat for PP1A Division 2 for compliance 
with all provisions of state law and the Vested Code, as well as all conditions 
imposed by the applicable MPD permit, the DA, the Hearing Examiner’s 
Preliminary Plat Approval and decision in the related SEPA appeal, and the MPD 
Framework Design Standards and Guidelines (collectively, “Conditions of 
Approval”), and have prepared and provided to the City Council a Staff Report 
summarizing their findings in detail; and  
 
WHEREAS, City staff and members of the MDRT, based on their review of the 
final plat application, recommend approval of the PP1A Division 1 final plat, subject 
to Oakpointe’s submission of adequate security to ensure the completion of the 
remaining work; and 

 



Resolution No. 18-1255   2 

 

WHEREAS, City staff and members of the MDRT have reviewed and approved 
the bonds guaranteeing completion and maintenance of the infrastructure 
improvements required by the Conditions of Approval; and 
 
WHEREAS, section 17.20.060.B of the Vested Code requires the City Council to 
review the Staff Report and proposed final plat to assure its conformance to all 
Conditions of Approval and that the required bonds, if applicable, have been 
posted, and further requires the City Council, by resolution, to make written 
findings to that effect and thereupon to authorize the Mayor to execute the City 
Council’s approval in writing on the face of the final plat; and 
 
WHEREAS, RCW 58.17.140 and Vested Code section 17.20.060 require that the 
City Council approve, disapprove, or return the final plat for modification within a 
limited time period, unless the applicant consents to a longer time; and 
 
WHEREAS, RCW 58.17.195 prohibits the approval of any subdivision unless the 
City makes a formal, written finding of fact that the proposed subdivision conforms 
to applicable zoning ordinances and other land-use controls; 
 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, 
WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 
Section 1.  Final Plat Approval.  The City Council finds, based on its review of 
the Staff Report and proposed plat, that all Conditions of Approval have been 
satisfied, or where they have not yet been satisfied, that adequate security has 
been or will be posted to ensure the full and prompt completion of all required 
improvements that have not yet been completed.  Further, the City Council finds 
that the proposed subdivision conforms to applicable zoning ordinances and land-
use controls of the City.  Accordingly, the final plat for Ten Trails PP1A Division 2 
is hereby approved on condition that Oakpointe provides bonds, in a form and 
amount acceptable to the City, guaranteeing completion of all infrastructure 
improvements required by the Conditions of Approval that have not yet been 
completed. 
 
 
Section 2.  Authorization.  Upon Oakpointe’s provision of the bond(s) described 
in Section 1, the Mayor is authorized to sign the final plat for Ten Trails PP1A 
Division 2, signifying the Council’s approval. 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution No. 18-1255   3 

 

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, 
WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, THIS 19TH DAY OF 
JULY 2018. 
 
       CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND: 
 

      
 __________________________ 

       Carol Benson, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk  







































































































































































































CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA BILL 

City of Black Diamond 
Post Office Box 599 

Black Diamond, WA 98010 
ITEM INFORMATION 

SUBJECT:   
 
Resolution adopting Greenhouse Gas 
Emission Reduction Policies 

Agenda Date:  July 19, 2018           AB18-067 

 Mayor Carol Benson  

City Administrator   

City Attorney David Linehan  

City Clerk – Brenda L. Martinez  

Com Dev/Nat Res –   

Finance – May Miller  

MDRT/Ec Dev – Andy Williamson  

Cost Impact (see also Fiscal Note):  $-- Police – Chief Kiblinger  

Fund Source: -- Public Works – Seth Boettcher X 

Timeline: August 2018 Court – Stephanie Metcalf  

   

Agenda Placement:  Mayor   Two Councilmembers  Committee Chair  City Administrator 

Attachments: Proposed Resolution  

 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 

With state, regional, and local governments throughout the United States adopting energy 
conservation programs and policies, state agencies are now taking under consideration 
whether or not cities have adopted policies to reduce greenhouse gas emissions in determining 
awards for grant funding. Agencies that the City has recently received funding from, such as the 
Transportation Improvement Board (TIB), Department of Ecology (DOE), and the Public Works 
Trust Fund (PWTF) take into consideration whether or not cities have adopted these policies. 
 
The policy consists of items the City should be considering, but takes into account feasibility, 
such as costs, location, and practicality. The City already follows many of these draft policies. 
 
FISCAL NOTE (Finance Department):  N/A 
 
 

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: MOTION to adopt Resolution No. 18-1256, adopting policies 
and procedures as the City of Black Diamond’s Greenhouse Gas Emission 
Reduction Policy. 

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION 
Meeting Date  Action      Vote 

July 19, 2018   

         

 



 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 18-1256 

 

  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

ADOPTING GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSION REDUCTION 

POLICIES 
 

 

WHEREAS, greenhouse gas emissions can have a harmful effect on the environment; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, state, regional, and local governments throughout the United States are 
adopting energy conservation programs and policies; and 
 

WHEREAS, all state agencies must consider whether cities receiving capital funds have 
adopted policies to reduce greenhouse gas emissions per RCW 70.235.270; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Washington State Transportation Improvement Board, the Department 
of Ecology, and the Public Works Trust Fund are among those state agencies that must 
consider greenhouse gas emission policies and which have provided funding to the 
City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the people of the City of Black Diamond may 
benefit from policies and procedures to benefit its natural resources and reduce the 
emission of greenhouse gases; 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, 

WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. The following policies and procedures are hereby adopted as the City of 
Black Diamond’s Greenhouse Gas Emission Reduction Policy: 
 

1. All new publicly funded buildings should be the models of cost-effective, energy-
efficient design. 

2. City employees should be encouraged to be aware of their own energy usage and 
be encouraged to carry out appropriate measures to address potential 
conservation. 

3. Existing city-owned buildings should be evaluated for weatherization programs 
designed to conserve energy. 

4. City capital projects should be reviewed for energy consumption efficiency. 
5. Elected officials and department heads should review projects and duties which 

may be appropriate for telecommuting options. 
6. Manage lighting needs through the use of energy-efficient light bulbs and sources. 
7. Encourage employees to maximize recycling opportunities. 
8. Encourage employees to carpool to offsite trainings and meetings. 
9. Monitor the efficiency of the pumps in the water and sewer systems, and operate 

them at peak efficiency. 



 

 

10. Encourage employees to use alternative forms of transportation (including 
bicycling and walking) to work and provide storage facilities for bicycles and other 
equipment (such as bike racks). 

11. Include bike racks or lockers with any project that would expand parking in the 
downtown area or near other public spaces. 

12. Provide safe and convenient access for pedestrians and bicyclists. 
13. Install water-efficient landscapes and irrigation, including self-watering drip 

systems for hanging baskets on street light posts. 
 
 

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, 

WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, THIS 19TH DAY OF JULY 

2018. 

 
       CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND: 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Carol Benson, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk 


